
LANCASTER COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

Minutes

July 19, 2012

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Lancaster County Planning Commission 
was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Board meeting room of the Lancaster County 
Administration Building, Lancaster, Virginia.

Present were Robert Smart-Vice-Chairman, Ty Brent, Glenn Pinn, Steve Sorensen 
and David Chupp.  David Jones and Tara Booth were absent.

Also present were Butch Jenkins, Board of Supervisors Representative, Don Gill, 
Planning/Land Use Director, Charlie Costello, Rich Steensma and others.  
           

Mr. Smart asked if there were any corrections or additions to the minutes of the 
May 17, 2012 regular meeting.

Mr. Smart moved to approve the May 17, 2012 minutes as submitted.  VOTE: 5-
0.

DISCUSSION ITEM #1

UPDATE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – CHAPTER FOUR

Mr. Smart asked Mr. Gill to present the issue.

Mr. Gill stated that because Reverend Gayl Fowler is doing a more extensive 
review of Chapter Three of the Comprehensive Plan, the Planning Commission is moving 
forward to the review of Chapter Four. He stated that Chapter Four deals with Shoreline 
Protection. He further stated that he had included a copy of Chapter Four in everyone’s 
packet for their review for tonight’s meeting.

Mr. Smart stated that he thought the chapter was well written and the Virginia 
Institute of Marine Science (VIMS) input is useful. He stated that there were a few minor 
things that could be reviewed such as the reassessment of how many miles of hardened 
shoreline there are currently.

Mr. Brent stated that he thought Chapter Four was very well written and still 
useful.

1



Mr. Chupp referred to Section three, where it talks about education for waterfront 
property issues and alternatives. He asked about the possibility of shoreline protection 
seminars for waterfront property owners. He stated that he had seen some classes 
advertised in the local paper, but there was always a fee and did not appear to be a county 
sponsored event.

Mr. Gill replied that he was not aware of any upcoming workshops.

Mr. Chupp stated that he thought a workshop sponsored by the county would be a 
good idea.

Mr. Smart stated that possibly VIMS could be asked to do a class at the library.

Mr. Gill stated that VIMS funding has been cut in the last couple of years.

Rich Steensma stated that the Northern Neck Master Gardeners are willing to 
work with waterfront property owners and offer ideas and suggestions on protection of 
their property.

Mr. Gill stated that the Wetlands Board goes through training periodically and 
many of the current shoreline protection measures are geared toward natural vegetation as 
opposed to the hardening of shorelines with riprap and bulkheads. He further stated that 
sites with a lot of wave energy sometimes need to have riprap or another form of 
hardened shoreline.

Mr. Smart stated that the natural buffers seem to be a good idea in sustaining 
habitats and not interfering with downstream properties.

Mr. Chupp stated that he thought the county should look into providing a class for 
the public, where they could learn about shoreline protection methods and where they 
could buy plants for their shoreline.

Mr. Jenkins stated that, while the natural buffers on shore offer good protection, 
the best protection, sub-aquatic vegetation, has been lost. He stated that it used to be 
called “eel grass” and it began to be lost locally in the 1960’s due to loss of sunlight 
caused by particles clouding the water. He stated that he wondered why VIMS had not 
researched ways to replace the sub-aquatic grasses because of their benefits.

Mr. Smart stated that Mr. Gill had shown him a book from VIMS showing the 
shoreline of today compared to the shoreline in 1937. He stated that in protected 
waterways, there is not much difference, but on some of the points, it was totally 
different.

Mr. Gill stated that that information had been researched in accordance with a 
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) grant and shows the 
shoreline of 1937 compared to the shoreline of 2009 for the twenty-four plates that VIMS 

2



keeps records on in Lancaster County. He stated that the book also contains a pictorial 
chronology from 1937 through 2009 for each of the twenty-four plates and shows how 
the shoreline and land use has changed in those areas. He stated that the county has two 
of these books and they are available for reference anytime.

Mr. Smart suggested that the books be referenced in Chapter Four because they 
are a tremendous resource.

Mr. Smart stated that he noticed that there were no staff contact names mentioned 
in Chapter Four for a citizen to contact for advice.

Mr. Gill stated that the chapter could include that the county has an 
Environmental Codes Compliance Officer and that he should be the first point of contact.

Mr. Gill stated that the chapter refers to the 2001 Lancaster County Shoreline 
Situation Report and there is no newer version. He stated that the 2001 report is also on 
the VIMS website.

Mr. Gill stated that he would double-check the percentages on page 4-2 to make 
sure that they are still accurate.

Mr. Gill referred to page 4-4, which talks about the amount of miles of shoreline 
and stated that he would try to get an updated figure from 2011.

 Mr. Smart asked Mr. Gill about inundation charts being included in Chapter 
Four.

Mr. Gill replied that they have hard copies of those charts and they change over 
time. He suggested that they include a website to reference for the most recent 
information concerning inundation charts.

Mr. Gill referred to page 4-9 and stated that the VIMS website has changed and 
he would include the correct web address in the revision.

Mr. Gill stated that he would make the appropriate changes and bring Chapter 
Four back at next month’s meeting as a consideration item.

Mr. Smart agreed.

Mr. Jenkins suggested that Chapter Five be mailed out to the Commission the 
following week so that they can begin reviewing it.

Mr. Gill stated that he would do that.  Chapter Five’s subject is “Access to State 
Waters”.

Mr. Costello stated that the entire Comprehensive Plan is on the county website.

3



Mr. Smart stated that he thought Chapter Four was an excellent report and shows 
the help of VIMS and NOAA.

OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Gill stated that he had not heard anything from Reverend Fowler concerning 
Chapter Three, but that she had said it was going to take her some time to review and 
comment.

ADJOURNMENT

The July 19, 2012 regular meeting of the Lancaster County Planning Commission 
was adjourned at 7:30 p.m.

4


	Minutes
	July 19, 2012
	DISCUSSION ITEM #1
		UPDATE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – CHAPTER FOUR

	ADJOURNMENT

